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REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
OPINION

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Washington Farish Hospital Serviece Disbrict
No, 1, d/b/a Riverside Mediral Center {Heospital), a component unit of the Washington Parish Council,
State of Towislana, as of arnd for the yvears ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, and the relaled netes
to the financial statemenlLs, which collectively comprise the Hospital's basic financial statements as
listed in the table of contents.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the finanecial pesition of Washington Parish Hospital Service District No. 1, d/b/fa Riverside Medical
Center as of December 31, 2023 and 2022, and the changes in its financial positicn and cash flows for
the years then snded in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in Lhe United States
of Aamerica.

BASTS FOR OPINION

We conducted cur audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 4tates
of America and the standards applicable to [inancial auwdits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller Gencral of the United States., Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the 2Zuditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are required to be indapendent of the Hospital and to meet our
olher cthical responsibilities in accordance with the relevant ethical rvequirs=ments relating to our
apdit. We helieve that the audit evidence we have obtained is suvfficilent and appropriate to provide a
hasis tor our audit opinion.

KANAGEMENT 'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of america, and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal centrel relewvant to the preparation and fair
pPresentation of finmancial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether dus to fraud
Or error.

In preparing Lhe financial atatements, management is required to evaluate whether there are
conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raiss substantial deubt aboul the liespital’s
ability to continue as a goling concern for twelve months bevyond the financial statcment date,
including any currently known information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FCOR THE AUDIT COF THE FINANCIAL STATEMEMNTS

Our chjectives are ta obtain reasonakle assurance about whether the flnancial statements as a whole
are free from material misslatemsnt, whether due to frvAaud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
Lhat includes our opinicn. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolutc
assurance and therefore is not a3 guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally
accepted auditing standards and Govermnment Auditing Standards will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecling a material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for nne resulling from error, as fraud may involva collusion, forgery, intsntional
omissions, misrepresenlations, or the override of internal control. Misstatemenlks are considersd
material if thare is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would
influence Lhe judgment made by & reascnable user based on Lhe financial statemants.

In performing an audit in acrcordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government
Auditing Standards, wve:
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Exercise professional judgment and maintain profeassional skepticism throughout the audit.

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial atatamenls, whether due to
traud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. 8uch procedures
include examining, on a ftest basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the {inancial
statementa.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
proveduras that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of Lhe Huspital’s internal control. Accordingly, ne such opinion 1s
gxpressead.

Evaluate the appropriateness of aceounting policies uscd and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by managemenL, as well as evalnate the overall presentation of the
finanecial statements,

Conclude whethar, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, censidered in the agyregate, that
raiae substantial doubt about the Hospital’s ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable

periovd of time,

We are required to communicale with those charged with governance regarding, among other malters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control
related matters that we identified during the audzit.

OTHER MATTERS
Required Supplementary Information

The Hospital has not presented Management’s Discussien and Rnalysis that accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States has determined ls necessary te supplement, although not
required te be a part of, the basic financial statements.

Other Supplemental! TInrormation

Cur audit was conducted for the purpesc of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whele,
The schedules identified in the table of contents as supplemental information are presented for
purposes of addilional analysis and are not a regquired part of the financial statements,

Such informatien is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the
underlying =zccounting and other records used to prepare the kasic financial statemenfts. The
information hae been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconeiling such information
directly to the underlying accounting and other records nsed to prepare the basic financial
stataments or to the basic financial statemcnts themselves, and other additional procedures in
accordance with anditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Tn our
cpinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation Lo the financial
statements as o whole.

OTHER REPORTING REQUIRED BY GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Tn accordance with Gevernment Audiliny Standards, we have also issued cur veport dated May 23, 2024
on our considetation of the Hospital’s internzl control over financial reperting and on our tests of
its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and qrant agreements and
other mallers. The purpese of that report is to dsscrihe the scope of our testing of internal centrol
over financial reporting and compliance and the results ol Lhat testing, and not to provide an
opinion on the effactiveness of the hospital’s internal control over financial reporting cr on
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government
Auditing Standsrds in considering the Hospital's internal centrol over financial reporting and
compliance.

7((“ s Biuspad d lé/jgﬂﬁg j

LANGLINAIS BROUSSARD & KCHLENBERG

(A Corwncration of Certified Public Accountants)
Abbeville, TA

May 23, 2024



WASHINGTON PARISH HOSPITAL SERVICE DISTRICT NO. 1
d/b/a RIVERSIDE MEDICAL CENTER
FRANKLINTON, LOUISIANA

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION DECEMBER 31,

ASSETS

2023 2022

Current Assets

Cash and Cash Eguivalentsa ] 9,597, 383 b 1,765,985
Patient Accounts Receivable, less Allowanece for Doubtful
Accounts of $2,215,006 and $2,422,113, reapantively 3,482,349 3,689,235
Lstimated Third-party Payor Settlements 1,855,533 2,058,344
Inventory 133,084 755, 988
Prepaid Expehses 131, 764 289,097
rd Valorem Tax Receivable 1,583,084 1,538,361
Other Receivables 532,736 307,091
Tatal Current Asscts 1,945,943 14,404,117
ASSETS WHOSE USE IS LIMITED:
By Beond Indenture 102, 0454 100,645
Tatal nAssets Whase Use is Limited 102,055 100, 649
Capital Assets
Preoperty, Plant and Equipment 27,471,393 28,574,023
lLess Accumnlated Depreciation {21,403,022) (23,167,103)
Total Capilal Assels, Net of Accumulated Depveciation 6,068,977 5,410,920
Total Assets 5 24,006,975 $ 21,615,684

The accompanying notes are an integral part ol thesce financial statements.
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WASHINGTCN PARISH HOSPITAL SERVICE DISTRICT NO. 1
d/b/a RIVERSIDE MEDICAL CENTER
FRANKLINTON, LOUISIANA

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION DECEMBER 31,

LIABTLITIRES AND NET POSITION

Unrestricted

Total Ner Positien

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these finencial statementa.

Total Liabilities and Net Position

1

13,331,110

2023 2022
Current Liabilities
Accountys Payable 5 1,315, 204 33 2,101,205
Current Maturities of Debt 533,464 379,582
Estimated Third-Party Payor Settlements 1,208,534 795,141
Patient Acccunts - Credit Balances ' 25,219 39,177
fccrued Salaries 508,108 598,223
Accrued Compensated Abscnces 988,482 1,014,631
Accrued Payroll Tiabilities and Health Insurance Reserve . 421,347 42,311
Accrued Interest Payable 17,888 18,983
Tetal Current Liabilitics 5,124,297 5,329,319
Long-Tarm Debt
Leases Payable 878,384 513, 601
2017 Series of Tndebtedness 277,000 363,000
201% Series of Indebtedness 425,000 840,000
Total Long-Tarm Debt 1,980,384 1,716,601
Total Liabilities 7,100, 681 7,045,920
Net Positian
Invested in Assets, Het of Kelated Deht 3,555,129 4,314,730
Festricted 10z, 055 100, 649

11,454,380

16, 950, 294

14,868,766

§ 24,096,975

5 21,915, GAG




WASHINGTON PARISH HOSPITAL SERVICE DRISTRICT NO. 1
d/b/a RIVERSIDE MEDICAL CENTER

FRANKLINTON, LOUISIANA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITICN DECEMBER 31,

2023 2022

Operating Revenuas

Net pPatient Scrvice Revenue before Provision for Doublful Acnounts 4 28,042,871 H 28,001,733
Less: Provisions for Doubhtful Accounts {1,465, 713) 11,414,502)
Het Putient Service Revenue after Provision L{or Doubtful Accounts 26,576,958 24,587,231
Ad Valorem Taxes 1,695,729 1,620,0%R
Intergovernmenlal Transfers - Operalting 5,471,€82 1,624,374
Dther Operating Revenue . 2,008,421 766,774

Total Operating Revenues 35,752,790 33,628,477

Oparating Expenzes

Salaries 14,2%4, 500 14,362,562
Employee Benetits 4,77%1,372 4,860,013
cutside Scrviceas and Frofessional Fees 5,528, 349H 6,141,066
Nepreciation angd Amortization 981,260 866,736
Supplies and Gthor Eupenses 7,035,893 7,418,484
Total Operating EXpensas 33,611,423 33,749, 6F1
Gain (Loas) from Operations 2.141,3c7 {121,104}

Non~Operating Ravenues (Expenseas)

Non-Operating Grants 27,334 -
Rental Income 43,7349 448,889
Tnterest Income 29,435 7,877
Inlerest lxpense 113,537 194, 071)
Gain (Loss) on the Sale ol Assets (14,110} 1,009
Total Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses) (22,839) {35, 305)
Change in Net Position 2,118,528 (156,489)
Beginning Net Positien 14,869, 766 15,026,205
Ending Nek Posgition $ 14,588,294 5 14,869,768

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial stalements.

a



WASHINGTON PARISH HOSPITAL SERVICE DISTRICT NO. 1

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FRANKLINTON,

d/b/a RIVERSIDE MEDICAL CENTER

LOUISIANA

DECEMBER 31,

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

leceipts from Patients and Third-Party Fayors

Receipty fiom Ad Valorem Taxes

Receiply from Intergovernmental Transfers

Payments ko Supplicrs

Payments to Employees for Salaries

anrl RBenefits

Net Cash Flows Provided By Operating Activities

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Interest and Rental Income

{Gain)Loss on the Sale of Assets

Nat: Cash Flows Prowvided By Investing Activities

Cagh Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities

burchases of Capltal Assets
Proceeds brom Holes Paysble
Payments on Motes Payable
Interestl Paid on Debt Chligations

Payment of T.ease Obligations

Het Cash Flows {Used jin Capital and Related Financing

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Eguivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of the Year

Cash and Cash Equivalents at Ending of the Year

The accompanying notes are an lntegral part of these ftinancial statements.

H

Activitias

2023

2022

27,926,707
1,651,012
5,353,512

112, A01,243)
{15,035, B&6)

5§ 26,407,925
1,208,894
5,585,374

{13,585, 2403
(19,500, 315)

3,094,102 116,776
78, 174 57,766
14,110 {1,000)
Q2,284 56, 766

{1,656,219) (460, 457)

904,599 266,775
(94, 00Mm {35,000}
(115,032} {95,132}
{388,934} (471, 440)

(1,353,586) (853, 314)

1,832,800 (631, 772)

7,866,644 U,548,116

5 9,699, 444 5 7,866, 644




WASHINGTON PARISH HOSPITAL SERVICE DISTRICT NO. 1
d/b/a RIVERSIDE MEDICAL CENTER
FRANKLINTON, LOUISTANA

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS DECEMBER 31,

2023 2022

Recongiliation of Income from Cperations to Mebt Cash Flows
Provided by Operating Activities

Net Loss fruin Operations 5 2,141, 367 5 (121,184)
hdjuatments to Reconcile Operating Income [Losz) to Net Cash
Provided by {Used in) Operating Activities:

Depreciation and Amortizalion 981, 260 966,736
Irovision for Novbtful Accounls 1,465,513 1,414,502
Ilncraase in Patient accounts Recelivable (1,212,985 11,843,562)
Increase in Ad Valorem Taxes Recelwvable r44, 717 {411,204)
Decrease in Inventory 22,9072 64,303
(Increase| NDecreases 1o Prepald bxpenses 157,331 t111, 101}
{Increasc) Decrease 1in Other Receiwvables (275,645} 1,242,900
Decrease in Estimated Third-Party Payer Settlements Rereiwvable 202,811 392,458
Tncrease (Decrease) in Estimated Third-Party Payor 3cltlements Payable 4249,1n9 1, 51,7118}
Decrease in Accounls Payabie {785,4850) 139,450}
Increass in hccrued Salaries 5,885 §7,005
(Decrease) Tncrease in Avcrued Compensated Bbsences (26,140} 643,393
Increase in Accrued Payrell Liabilities and Health Insurance Roeserve 38,970 79,701
Net Cash Flows Provided By (Used In) Operating Activities & 3,094,102 g ]16,776_

1
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these {lnancial statements
K



WASHINGTON PARISH HOSPITAL SERVICE DISTRICT NO. 1
d/b/a RIVERSIDE MEDICAL CENTER
FRANKLINTON, LOULSIANA

NOTES 7O FINANCIAL STATEMENTS DECEMEER 31, 2023 AND 2022

NOTE 1: DESCRIPTION OF REPORTING EMTITY AND SUMMARY OF SIGHNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Reporting Entity

Wazhington Parish llespital Service Dislrict No. 1, d/b/a Riverside Medical Center (the Hospital) is an acute
care facility created pursuant to Leouisiana Revised Statutes of 1950, Title 45, Chapter 10. Ir is the
Hospital's mission to provide its community with high quality care and education in a friendly, caring and
professional manner. The administralion of the Hospital is governed Ly a Board of Commissioners consisting
of members appointed Ly the Washington Parish Council.

The findncial repoerting entity consiste of (al the primary government {couneiiman), (b) wvrganizalions for
which Lhe primary government is financially accountable, and (c¢) other organizaticns fLor which Lhe nature
and significance of their relationship with the primary government are such thal exclusien would cause the
reporting entity's financial statcments to be misleading or incomplete.

GASB Codjification Seection 2100 established criteria for determining which component units should he
considernd part of the repuriing entity for financial reporting purposes. The basic criterion for including
a potantial component unit within the reparting entily is financial accounltability. The GASE has set forth
criteria to he considered in determining financial accountability. The criteria include:

1. Appointing a voting majority of an organizatlon’s governing body, and
a. The ahility of the council to impose its will on that organszation and/or

b. The potential for the organizatiun to provide specific financial benefits to or impose specifie
financial burdens on the council,

2. Organizations for which the council does nat appoint a voting majority but are fiscally dependent on
the coincil.

4. Organlzations for which the repurting entity’s financial statements would be wislcading it data of the
organization is net includad because of the nature or significance of the relationship.

Because Lhe Councll appoints all of the members of the Hospital’s governing hoard and has the ability ta
impose its will on the tlospital, the Hospital is a component unit of Washington Parish Council. The basie
financial statements present infermation ooly on the funds maintained by the Hospital and do not prescnt
informatien on the Council, the general government services provided by that governmental unit, or the other
governmental units that comprise the financial reporting entity.

Use of BEstimates

The preparation of financial sLalements in conformity with accountang principles generally accepled in the
United Stales of Mmerica requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounls of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenuss
and expeuses during the raporting period. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

Enterprisze Fund Accounting

The Hospital uses enterprise fund accounting. kevenues and cxpenses are recognized on the accrual basis
using tha ecenomic rescurces measurement focus, The basic finaneial statements include Statement of Net
Pasition, SLatement of Revennes, Expenses, and Changes in Net Positicn, and Statement of Cash Flows.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, demand deposits, money wmarket accountz and certificates
af deposit with an original maturity cf three months of less, excluding amounts restrictad as to use by
Beard designation, ather arrangoments under tronst agreements, or with third-party payors.

Regtricted Assaets

Assets whaose use i= limited include funds set aside by the Board of Commissioners to satisfy depozil
requirements of the Hospital's debt agreements.



WASHINGTON PARISH HOSPITAL SERVICE DISTRICT NO. 1
d/b/a RIVERSIDE MEDICAL CENTER
FRANKLINTON, LOUISIANA

ROTES TQ FINANCIAL STATEMENTS DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND 2422

HOTE 1: DESCRIPTION OF REPORTING ENTITY AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, CONTINUED

CaEital Asgets

The Hospital's capital assets are reported at hizstorical cost. CUontributed capltal assets are reported at
their estimated fair value at the time of contrlbution, which is then treated as cost. Eguipment under lease
is stated at the sum of the initial measurement of the lease liability plus any paymenls made to the lessor
gt or belfore the commencement of the legse term plus initial direct cost necessary to place the lease asset
in service. Maintenance, repairs and minor replacements, and improvements are expensed as incurred. Majaz

replacements and improvements are capitalized at cost.

Description of property, plant and equipment i3 calculated on the straight-line method using Lhe following

estimated asset lives:

Land Improvementy 15- 20 years
Buildings and Building Improvements 20-40 years
Computers and Murniture 3- 7 years

Leased equipment is amurtized on the atraight-linc method over the shorter of the lease term or estimated
useful lives of the assets. Subscription-based information technology arrangement is stated at the sum of
the initial measuremant of the subscription liability plus any payments made Lo the lessor at or bhafore
the commencement of the subscription term plus initlal direct cost necessary to place the subscription asset
in service, Subscription-based information Lechnoloeay arrangemenis are amortized on the straight-line method
over the shorter of the subsacription term »r estimated useful lives of the assets, Subscription-based
inteormatian technolegy arrangement is stated ab the sum of the initial measvrement of rhe subscriptian
liability plus any payments made to the lessor at or before the commencement of the subscription term plus
initial direct cost nacessary to place the subscriphtion asset in service. Subscription-hased information
fachnelogy arrangements Are amortized on the srtraight-lince method over the shozter of the subscription term
or estimated useful lives cof the assets.

Inventory

Lnventory is valued at the lower of cost or market, using Lhe first—-in, firat-out method,

Cost of Borrowing

Exrept for capital assets acquired through gifts, contributions, or capital grants, interest cost lncurred
an borrowed funds during the period of construction of capltal asselbs is capitalized as a component of the
coslt of asguiring those assets, Lnterest earned on these zame borrouwed funds, hefore the funds are spent
on the construction of the capital assers, is also capitelized.

Bestricted Resources

The Hospital first applies vestricled reosources when sxpenditures are incurred for purpases for which bath
restricted and unrestricted net assets are available,

Net Position

GRSE 63 and GASB Codification Section PHD, states that net position is equal to assels plus deferred outflows
of resources less liabilities and deferred inflaows of rescurces. Net position classifications are defined
as follows:

Invested in Capital Assets, MNet of Related Dakt consists of capital assets, net of accumulaled depreciation
and amartization, reduced by the oulstanding balances of any borrowings used for the auguisition, conslbrustion

3



WASHINGTON PARISH HOSPITAL SERVICE DISTRICT WO. 1
d/b/a RIVERSIDL MEDICAL CENTER
FRANKLINTON, LOUISIANA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS DECEMBER 31, 2023 ANWD 2022

NOTE 1l: DESCRIPTION OF REPORTING ENTITY AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, COMTINUED

or lmprovement of thoss assets. Net position invested in capital assets, net of related debt, excludes unspant
debt proceeds.

Restricted Net Position consists of restricted assets reduced by liabilities and deferred inflows of resources
related to those assets. Assels may be restricted when there are limitations imposed on their use cither through
axternal constraints Tmpused by oreditors (such as through debt cuvenants), grantors, contributcrs, or laws
or regulations of other governmenls ox constrainls imposed by law through constituticnal provisions or enabling
legislation,

IInrestricted Net DPosition consists cf net position that does not meet the definition of ths two preceding
catcgories,

Operating Revenue and Expenses

The Hospital’s statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net pousition distinguishes hetwecn operating
and non-operating revenucs and expenscs. Operating revenues result from exchange transactions associlated
with providing healthcare services-the Hospital's principal activity and from ad valorem taxaes elccted to
ba used for operabions. Non-exchange rvevenues, including taxes designated for debt service, grants, and
cantrihutions received (or purpnaes other than capital asset acquisition, are repevted as nan-operating
revenues. Operating expensesa are all expenses incurred to provide healtheare services, other than [1naneing
costs,

Compenzated Absences

Full-time amployees are granted vacation in varying gamounts as estuablished by Hespital policy. Unused
vacation days esarned, up to a maximum range of 28E-448 hours per year, depending on tenure, may be carried
forward and accumulated, Effective Januwary 1, 2018, the Hospital adopted a new policy that appliss to
cuployeea hired after the effective date that 1limits the maximum range to 160-280 hours per year, depending
on tenure. [n the evenl of termination, an employee is reimbmraed for accumulated vacation days. Tn additiaen,
full and part-time employees are also granted sick pay at a rate of 0.02313 hours per paid hour as established
by Hospital policy, Unused sick pay, up Lo a maximum of 480 hours, may bhe accumulated. Unused sick pay is
not payabla upon termination, unless the employas has a balance in the Reserve pIT bank, which was created
to “grandfather in” eligible employees at the Lime the extended sick policy was revised., These ocmployees
are paid at the rate of ane-half their aurrent hourly rate, for esach accrued hour of sick Fime, not o exceed
480 hours.

Accrued compensaled absences on the Hoapital’s Statement of Met Pesiticn were $988,482 and 51,014,631 for
years ended Deccmber 31, 2023 and 2022, rogpectively.

Risk Managoment

Thie Hoapital is exposed to various risks of loss from torts; theil of, damage to, and gdeslruction of assets;
husiness interruptiocn; errors and cmissions; employee injuries and illnesses; natural disasters; medical
malpractice; and cmplayee health, dental and accidental benefits. Commercial insurance coverage is purchased
for claims arising from such matters.

Invastment in Debt and Equity Securities

Tnvestments in debl and equity sccurities are reported at [air walue except for short-term highly liquid
investments that have a remaining maturily at the time they are purchased ot one year or less. These
investments are carried at amortized costs. Tnterest, dividends, gaina, and losses, both realized and
unrealized, on investments in debt and equitly securities are included in non-operating revenue when earned.

Net Patient Service Revenue

The Hospital has agreements with third-party payors that preovide for payments to the Hospital at amounts
different from establicshed rates. A summAry of the payment arrangements with major third-party payors
follows:

10



WASHINGTON PARISH HOSPITAL SERVICE DRISTRICT NO. I
d/b/a RIVERSIDE MEDICAL CENTER
FRANKLINTON, LOUISIANA

NOTES TC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND 2022

NOTE 1: DESCRIPTION OF REPORTING ENTITY AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, CONTINUED

Medicare ~ Rffective July 1, 2004, the Hespital was approved for “critical Access” status under the Medicare
Rural Hosplital Flexibility Program. The program allows 53tates to deslignate rural facllities as “critical
access hospitals” 1f they are localed a sufficient distance 7from olher hospitals, make available 24-hour
emergency care, maintain nno mare than 25 inpatient beds, and kwep inpatients nu longer than 86 hours (except
where weather or emergency conditiens diclate, or 2 Peer Review Organization waives the limit). Payments
for inpatient/outpatient ssrvices under critical access are cn the basis of reascnable costs.

Prior to July 1, 2009, the Hospital was paid for inpatient acute care services rendered to Medicare program
beneficiarices under prospectively determined rates-per-discharge. These rates vary according to a patient
classification system that is hased on clinical, diagnostic, and other factors, The prospectively determined
classification of patients and the appropriatencss of the palients’ admissions are subject tu a validation

review by a Medicare pcer review organization, which is under contract with the Hospital to perform such
rewieus.

Cost reimbursed services are paid al tentative rates, with final settlement determined after submission
of annual cost reports and the completion of audits therecf by the Medicave fiscal intermediary. The
Hospital’s Medicare coat reports have bean settlad by the Medicare fiscal intermediary through December
31, Z021.

Medicaid Topatient services rendered to Medicaid and Medicaild Managed Care Qrganizations (“MCOa™) program
heneficiarics are veimbursed at & fixed rate per day for madical/=zurygical patients. OQutpatienl. scrvices
for traditional Mediczid and MCO programbensficlaries are reimbursed under a coat reimbursement methodology,
with gzertain limitations and excepticns. The Hospital is reimbursed aft an interim rate with (inal settlewent
determined after submission of annual roust reports filed by the Hospital and audits thercof by the Medicaid
fiscal intermediary. The llospital’s Medicaid cost reports have been settled by the Medicaid fiscal
internnediary through December 11, 2014,

Taws and regulations governing the Medicare and Medicald programs are extremely complex and subjecht tc
interpretation. As a result, thera 1s at least a reasonable possibility that recorded estimates will change
by a material amount in the near term. These adjustments will be recorded in the year they are realized.

The Hospital has agreements with Lhird-party payors that provide for payments Lo the Hospital at amounts
different from its estahlished rates. Payment arrangements include prospectively determined rates per
discharge, reimbursed costs, discounted charges, and per diem payments., Het patient sexvice revenue j=s
reporcad at the estimated net realizable amounts frowm patients, third-party pavers, and othars Lor services
rendered, including esstimated retrcactive adjustments under reimbursemenl agreements with third-party
payors. Relrcactive adjustments are Aaccrued on an eatimated hasis in the period the rolated services are
rendered and adjnsted in future periods as final settlements are determined.

For uninsured patients that do not qualify for charity care, the Hospilal recognizes revenue on the hasis
of its standard rates for services provided. On the basis of historical experience, a significant portion
of the Hospital’s uninsured patients will b= unable or unwilling to pay for the services provided. Thus,
the tlospital records a significant provision for bad debts related te uninsured patients in the period the
services arc provided.

Ad wvalorem Taxeas

Propcrty taxes werc levied on January 1, on property values assessed con that date. Notices of taX liability
are mailed un or about November 1, of the same year and are due and payable at that time. All vopaid taxes
levied beccme delinguent January 1, of Lhe following yealr. Property tax ravenues are recognired in the same
fiscal wyear within which they are billed pecausc they Aare considered available in that period. Available
includes those proparty tax receivables expected te be cullected within sizty days after year end. However,
the receivable for property taxes 1s recordsd at January 1, Lthe lien date.

On August 15, 2020 the taxpayers renewed a l0-year, 18 mills tax for “acquiring, constructing, improving,
mainlkaining and cperating the hespital and medical buildings and facilities, including equipment and
fixtures, ol thes Uistriat”. For the fizscal years ended 2023 and 2022, this was the only millage assessed
hy the Hospital.
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WASHINGTON PARISH HOSPITAL SERVICE DISTRICT HO, 1
d/b/a RIVERSIDE MEDICAL CENTER
FRANKLINTON, LOUISIANA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND 2022

HOTE 1: DESCRIPTION OF REPORTING ENTITY AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, CONTINUED

Ad valorem taxes make up approximately 4.7% and 4.8% of the hospital's financial support for the years cnded
Deconber 31, 2023 and 2022, respactivelw.

Income Taxes
The Hespital 1s a pelitical subdivision and exempl from taxes,

Advertising

The Hospital expenzes advertising cests as incurred. Advertising expenses incunrrad during the vears ended
Necember 31, 20223 and 2022, totaled 528,005 and $37,411, respectively.

Environmental Matters

Due to the nalure of the Hospital's operations, materials handled could lead to environmental coucerns.
However, at the time, managewent is not aware of any cnvirenmental matters which need to be considered.

Reclassifications

Ta be conaistent with current year classificalions, some 1tems from the previous year have been reclassified
Wwith no effect on net position.

HOTE 2: CAaSH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Stale law requires collateralization of all depositz wilh federal depeository insurance and ether acceptable
collateral in specific amounts. The Hospital's bylaws require that all bank balances be insured or
cellateralized by U.5. government securities held by the pledging financial institution’s trust department
in the name of the Hospital.

The carrying amcunts of deposits are included in the Hospital's Statement of Net Position
as follows:

2023 2022
Tnaured (FD1C) [ 250, 000 [ 250, 000
Cwllateralized by sevurities held by the pledging
financial institution's trust department in the
Hogpital's name 11,163,004 8,551,026
Total Collateral Held for Bank Balances s 11,413,004 ] 8,801,028
Total Carryving Yalue pelb Bank % 10,085,548 5 8,505,752

For the Purposes of cash [lows, cash and cash eguivalents for the years ended December 31

are as follows:
2023 2022

Total Cash and Cash Eguivalents £9,600,443 37,866, 644

NOTE 3: ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE - PATIENTS

accounts reoceivable are reduced by an allowance for deubtful accounts. In evaluating the collectabkility
of accounts receivable, the lospital analyzes its past history and ldentifies trends [or each of ita major
payor scurces of revenue to estimale the appropriate allowance for doubtful accounts and provision for had
debts. Management ragularly reviews data ahout these major payor sources of revenue in evaluating the

sufficiency ot the allowance for deoubtful accounts. For receivables associated with services provided tao
patients who have third-pariy coverage, the Hospital analyzes ceontractually dues amounts and provides an
dilowance for deubtrfu! accuunts and a provision for bad debts, 1f necessary. For receivables associated
with Medicaid, Commercial and Self-pay patlients, the Hospital recourds a significant provision for bad debts
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WASHINGTON PARISH HOSEBITAL SERVICE DISTRICT NO. 1
d/b/a RIVERSIDE MEDICAL CENTER
FRANKLINTON, LOUISIANWA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS DECEMBER 31, 2023 aND 2022

NOTE 3: ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE - PATIENTS, CONTINUED

in the period of service on the basis of its past experience and on the age of the receivable balance. The
aged balance indicates thal third--party claims have reached an age where the probabilily of payment 1s low
and the self-pay patients are unakble or unlikely to pay the porticn of their bill for which they are financially
responsihle. The aiffarance helwecen the standard rates and the amounts actually collected after all

reasonable collection efforts have been exhausled is charged otf against the allowance for doubtful accounts.

Fatient's ARccounts Receivable consists of the following:

2023 2022
Total Patient Accounts Raceivable 3 49,206,173 E] 9,947,044
LESS: Allowances for Doubtful Accounts

and Contractual Allowances {(2,793,824) (&, 257,608}

Net Patient psccounts Recmivanhle 3 3,492,249 5 3,688, 235
NOTE 4: ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE -~ OTHER
Other Acconnts Recelwable consists of the following:

2023 2022
FHMP Receivable & 358,170 [ 240, 000
Other Heceivables 174,566 67,091
Total Accounts Receivable — Other % 532, 73¢6 5 307,091

NOTE 5: MAJOR SOURCE CF REVENUE

The Hospital participates in the Medicare and Medicaid praograms as a provider of madical services to program
heneficiaries. The Hospital derived approximately 75% of its gross patient service revenue in 2023 and 2022,
raspectively, irom patients covered by the Medicarc and Medicaid programs. The Hospital recedived
Intergovernmental Revenue of 55,471,682 and 54,834, 374, which accounted ter 15% and 14% of tctal revenues
for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectivcly.

NOTE 6: NET PATIENT SERVICE REVENUE

Patient service revenue, net of contractual allowances and discounls, reccgnized in the period from major
payor sources, ii as follows.

Net Patient Service Revenue by Payor bhefore Provision for Doubktful Accounts:
2Qq23 2022

wy

Medicare 5

Medicaid
Al1l Other Payora

Tolal MNet Patienlk Scrvine Revenue Before Provision

3,867, 699
6,922,732
17,252, 440

3,346,010
7,223,448
1€,432,272

for Doubtful Accounts 5 28,042,871 $ 28,001,733
The tollowing achedule represents Total Net Patient Service Revenue:
20213 2022
Gross Pallcont Service Raevenus S 76,114,7797 $ 177,549,844

LES5: Comtractual Adjustments

Net Fatient Scrvice Revenue Befaore Provislion

ter Doubtful Accounts

Trovisiocn for Doubtful Accounts

Met Paticnt Barvice Revenue arfter Provision

for Doubtful Accounts
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{49,548,111)

28,042,871

{1,465, 913)

24,001,734

(1,414,502}
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WASHINGTON PARISH HOSPITAL SERVICE DISTRICT NO.
d/bfa RIVERSIDE MEDICAL CENTER

FRANKLINTCHN, LOUISIANA

NOTES TC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1

DECEMBER 31,

2023 AND 2022

NOTE 7: CHARITY CARE

The Hospital provides care to patients who meet certain criteria under its charity care policy without charge
or at amounts less than ifs established rates. The Hospital maintains records to identify and moniror the
level of charity care it provides. Becauss the Hospital does not pursue collection of amounts determined
to gualify as charity care, they are not reported as revenue. The reccrds include the amount of charges
foreqone for scrvices and supplies furnished under its charity care pelicy. The Hospital did not bave charily
care paticents fer the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022,

NOTE B: CAPITAT, ASSETS

Proparty, plant, aud equipment, by major category,

dare 4ds

follows:

December 3L, 2023
Beginning
Balanize Additions Oaletions Ending Balance
Land lmprovements 5 800,225 4 7,400 5 597 ] 907, 028
i ldings 15,231,848 64,000 3R9, B66A 14,308, 5R2
Equipmenl 7,768,013 152,524 1,535,521 6,585,018
Software Subscriptions - 135,373 135,373
Right of Use Building 415,534 - - 415,534
Righl of Use Equipment 41,208,232 170,326 536,258 4,142,295
Tatal Right of (Jse Assets 4,623,76h 770,326 838,255 4,557,833
Gross Capilal Assets 28,023,852 1,332,623 2,762,243 27,094,232
Lezy: Accymulated Depreciation (18,704, 90Q0) {543,899) 1,519,184 (18,328,70%)
Less: Accumulated Amortization-Softwars Subscription. - 112,862} - (12,862)
hesa: Accumulated Depreciation-Right of Use {3,462,203) (424,399) 824,147 {3,060,453)
Gross Accumulated Depreciation (23,107,103) {981,260} 2,745, 341 (21,403,022)
LDepreciaple Capital Aasets, Net 5, 3064, 749 351,363 14,902 5,691,210
Land 42,921 - - 42,521
Construction in Progress 11,250 334,346 11,250 334,845
Net Capital Assets 5,410,920 5 68h, 205 § 25,1502 5 6, 068,977
Necemher 31, 2022
Beginning
Ralan~e Addilions Deletions Ending Ralance
Land Improvencnts s npo, 225 S - 5 - 3 900,225
Buildings 15,216,068 15,780 - 15,231,848
Lguipment 7,660,309 179,941 72,281 7,768,013
Right o©f Usc Building 334,085 1,449 - 415,534
Right of Use Equipment 4,022,906 185,326 - 4,208,232
Total Right of Use Assets 4,356,991 266,715 - 4,623,766
Gross Capltal Assets 28,133,643 462,196 72,287 28,523,852
Less: Accumulated Depreciation {19,222,937) (h54, 250) 72,287 119,704,900)
Less: Accumulaled Depreciation-Right of Use (3,049,717) (412, 4E6) - (3,962,203}
Gross Azcumulated Oepreciation (22,272,654) (366, 132G} 72,287 (23,187,103}
Depreciable Capital Assets, Ret G,B60, RES (504,240} - h,356,749
Land 12,021 - - 42,921
Construction in Progress 11,250 - 11,2540
Net CAapital Assels 5 5,815,140 5 {504,240) $ - 5 5,410,920

Depreciation and amortizaticn expense for Lhe vears ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 amnunted teo 5881, 260

and $966, 736, respectively.
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NOTES TO FTNANCIAL STATEMENTS

WASHINGTON PARISH HOSPITAL SERVICE DISTRICT NO.
d/b/a RIVERSIDE MEDICAL CENTER

FEANKLINTON, LOUISIANA

1

NOTE 9:

Lang—-term debt at December 31,

2017 Serles of Indebledn

LONG-TERM DERT

2023 and 20z2,

consists of the following:

payable in semi-annual

instAllments at a 3.51% interest rate, maturity in 2027

2019 Series of Indebltedness dated February 12,
matnurity annual interst of 5.25%, maturing March 1, 2033, with

interest payable semi-annually

Right. of Use Obligation,

of the Canon CDXI Upgrado,

2018 with fina

60 monthly installments at a 4.65% interest rate, maturity in

2025

Right of Use Okhligation,
50 menthly installments at a

2022

Right of Use Okligation,
morithly installments at a 1,73%

2028

Right of Use Ohligation,

of GE vivid rSL
interesl rate,

System,

Infinitt Workstation, payable in
7.00% intevest rale, waturity in

maturity in

of the Canon Mobile X-~Ray System

payable in G0 wonthly installments at a 7.50% interest rate,

maturity in 20218

Right of Use Chbligation,

ot Carcfusion Pyxis Medical

Dispenser, payable in 60 monthly installments at a 3.45%

interest rate, maturity in 2028

Right of Use Ckhligation,
in 60 monthly installments at a 5.019% interest rate,

in 2025

Right of Use Obligation,
payable in 60 monthly lnstallments at a 3.79%

maturity in 2025

Right of Use Ubligation,

af 3N Mammo & Dexa Machine, payable
matirity

of RadFro Cmera Digital Svystem,

interesat rate,

of the CVT Injeclor System, payable

in 60 monthly ingstallmenta at a 7.28% interest rake, maturity

in 2027

Right of Use Obligation,
in 60 monthly installmenks at

in 2027

Right of Use Obhligation,

of Infinitt PACS &7 3System, payable

8.07% interest rate, maturicy

of a GE Ullrascoung viwvid B2,

in €0 monthly installmants ac a 2.19% interest rate, maturilty

in 2023

Right of Usc Ohligation,
payalzle in 72 monthly 1nstallments at a

maturity in 2023

Right of Use Cbligation,
monthly installments at

2028

0.00% interest rate,

of Beckman IS Billing hardware,
2.09% interest rate,

of Beckman DHX620T, payabkle in 80

maturity in

15

payable in

payable in 60

payable

DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND 2022
2023 2022
5 363, 000 5 446,000
840,000 855,000
17,637 29,406
_ 448
115,717 -
100,037 -
276,014 -
102,850 186, 349
15,762 123, 933
330,036 34,766
10,436 59, 503
- 12,089
- 3¢5
1i6, 572 -



WASHINGTCON PARISE HOSPITAL SERVICE DISTRICT NO. 1

ROTES TO FINAKCIAL STATEMENTS

d/bfa RIVERSIDE MEDICAL CENTER
FRANKLINTON, LOULSIANA

DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND 2022

NOTE §: LONG-TERM DEBET, CONTINUED

Right of Use Cbligation, of a Cannon Copler,
monthly instalilments at a 10.19% interest rate,

Z028

Right of Use Obligation, of a Cannon Copier,

menthly installments at a 2,19% interest rate,

2023

Right of Use Obligation, of

a Cannon Copier,

monthly installments at a 2.1%% interest rate,

2023

Right of Use Obligation, of

=)

Cannon Copler,

monthly installments at a2 2.19% interest rate,

2023

kight of Use Obligatian, of
wonthly installments at a 2,
2023

Right of lUse Ohligation, of
monthly installments at a 2.
2023 o

Cannon Copiox,

o

payalkle in

maturity

payable in

maturity

pavable in

maturity

nnon Copier, payable in

interest ratce,

interest rare,

marurity

payahle in

maturltcy

payable in 56
makburity in

a0

in

in

48
in

16
in

45

in

Hight of Usze Obligation, of a Pitney Bawes Postage Machine,

payable in 20 quarterly installmenta at a 2.19% intsrest rate,

maturity in 2023

Right of Use Obhligaticon, or Nuclecar Medicine System,
in 60 montnly instaliwents at a €.0U% interest rate,

in 2026

Right of Use Obligation, of
maonthly installments at a 3.
2024

kight of Use Obligation, of

payable in &0 monthly installments at a 4.00% interest rate,

maturity in 2027

Right of Usc bligaticon, ol Qlympus Fye Med,

Dlympus Eye Mead,

25% interest rate,

Severn Seven Investments Building,

malturity

payabhle
maturity

payable in 42

in

payable in 24

monthly installments at a 4.57% interest rate, maturity in

2024

Right of Use (Oblaigation, of GF Legiq Fortis System ,

N 67 monthly installments at & 2.5J0% interest rate,

in 2027

Software Subscription, of AbLbott Rapid Software,

veary installments at a 3.305% interest rate, maturity in 2027

Baftware Suhscription, ol Velcoity Bonftware,

=sarly installments at a 3.38% inlerest rate,

Software Subscriphtion, of Cerner

installments al a 2.87% interest rate,

Total Long-term Debl
Less: Current Portion
Long—term Portion

Dragon, payable in 5 yvearly
maturity in 2027

16

pavable
maturity

payable in 5

payable in 3
maturlity in 2025

g1, 423 -
- 21,627
- 651
- 624
- 785
T T T rE
- 3,334
61,721 80,261
41,392 41,163
56,085 71, 505%
3,124 7,127
64,356 80,157
41,314 -
7,910 -
59,062 -
2,514,849 2,006,143
{533,464} (379,582)
S 1, 9BGC, 384 3 1,716, 601




WASHINGTON PARISH HOSPITAL SERVICE DISTRICT NHO. 1
d/b/a RIVERSIDE MEDICAL CENTER

FRANMKLINTON, LOUISIANA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS DECEMBRER 31, 2023 AND 2022
NOTE 9: LONG-TERM DEBT, CONTINUED
Balance due within one ycar:
2023 2022

Lease Ohligations 5 432,454 B 281,582
2017 Series of Tndcebtedness 86,000 83,000
2018 Yeries of Indehtedness 15,000 15,000

Total ] 533,464 G 179,582

A summary of long-term debt activity for the years cnded December 31,

2023 and 2022,

consists of

the following:

December 31, 2023
Beginning Ending
Balance btdditions Reductions Balance
Lcase Okligations ] 795,183 S 769,276 5 361,847 573,202,562
Software Subscriptions - 135,373 24,087 108,286
201" Serics of Indebtedness 446, 000 - 23,000 363,000
2019 Series of Indebtedness ashh,000 - 15,000 H40, 000
Total 52,096,183 3 904,593 5 486, 334 52,513, 848
December 31, 2022
Beqinning Ending
Balance additions Reaductions Balance
Lease Obligations $ 999,868 5 268,775 S 471,460 $ 77065, 183
2017 Series of Indebtedness 528,000 - 20, 000 146,000
2019 Series of Indebtedness 870, 000 - 15,000 455, 000
Tatal & 2,395,868 $ 266,775 3 566,460 52,096,181

Schedul=dd repayments on long-term debt are as follows:

Decemher 31, 2023
Notes Payable Right ot Use

Principal Inlterest Total Principal Tnterest Total
2024 101,000 51,465 122,465 g 432,164 & 59,122 4191, 5B&
2025 104,000 47,978 151,876 206,048 35,984 336,433
2028 107,000 44,3734 151,373 259,334 25,744 285,082
2027 111, 000 10, 6189 151,418 235,652 12,057 247,709
2028 535,000 138, 825 773,825 86,5415 1,410 87,955

2029 ~ 2033 145, 000 7,613 152,613 - - -
Total $ 1,203,000 & 330,871 41,533,871 51,310,848 5 138,317 51,449,185

December 31, 2022
Nates Payable Right of Use

Principal Interest Tatal Principal interest Total
2023 & 98, 000 3 54,849 5 152,849 5 281, 582 3 33,078 5 314,660
2024 101,000 51,4865 152,465 282,803 21,701 5 284, 504
2025 104,000 47,076 151,976 130,868 10,794 = 141, 665
2028 107,000 44,373 151,373 76, 632 5,525 5 2,157
2027 111,000 40,619 151,614 43,300 1,484 S 44,7784

2028 — 2022 635,000 138,825 775,825 - - -

2033 - 203& 145,000 7,613 152,613 - - -
Total % 1,301,000 $ 2g5,720 $1,686,720 5 795,183 5 12,597 ] 367,770
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WASHINGTON PARISH HOSPITAL SERVICE DISTRICT NO. 1
d/b/a RIVERSIDE MEDICAL CENTER
FRANKLINTON, LOUILSIANA

HOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND 2022

HOTE 9: LONG-TERM DEBT, CONTINUED

Interest expense incurrced on long-term debb was $113, 937 and 594,071 for the years ended Dacember 31, 2023
and 2022, respectively,

NOTE 1¢: LEARSES

The lospital leases office space to various tenants, including physicians. Rental income received under
these arrangements totaled 348,739 and 549,889 for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively,
NOTE 11: CONCENTRATIONS CF CREDIT RISK

The Huspital grants credit Lo patients, substantially all of whom are loczl residents. The Hospital generally
does not require collateral or other security extenrding credit to patients; howevexr, it routinely obtains

assignments of {or is otherwise entitled to receive) patlents’ benefits payakle nnder health insurance
programs, plans or policies {e.g., M=sdicare, Medicaid, Blue Cross and commercial insurance policies).

The min ol gross receivables from patients and thizd-party payors at December 31, arc as follows:

2023 2022
Medicare 13% 368
Medicaid 18% 27%
Commcrcial and cother third-party payors, and patients 9% 37%
100% 100%

NOTE 12: DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLAN

The Hospital offers to its employees a single employer defined contribution plan, the Riverside Medical
Centar Retirement Plan, in accordancs with Tnterpnal Revenue Code Secticn 457, Substantially all emplovees
who have completed one year of service are eligible to participate. Under the plan, the maximum deferral
cffered to the employess 1s $22, 500 and 320, 500 for December 31, 2023 and 2022 as defined in the plan agreement.
The Hospilal is required to match 100% of the employees’ deferral, not to exceed 3% of Lhe employees’ salary
or maximum deferral. Participants bencme fully vestad after five years, with ne graduated vesting occurring
betwean years one Lhrough four. Fnployer contributions were $198,236 and 5160, 502 for the years coded December
31, 2024 and 2022, respectively. ALl amounts of compensation deferved under the plan, all oroperty and rights
purchased with those amounts, and all income attributanble to Lhose amounts, property, or rights are {until
paid or made available to the employee or other peneficiary) held in trust for the sxclusive benefit of
the participants and their beneficiaries, and the benefits may not ha diverted to any other use., Forfeitures
may be used to reduce futrnre Hospital aontributions. Forfeitures reflected in pension cxpense as a reduction
of employer contributions were $4,050 and 533,278 for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022,
respectively.

The Hospital has na liability for losszes under the plan. An independent administrator serves as trustee

uf the employess' deferrals and the Hospital's matching contoibuticons. Fach employes chonses from an array
of investment options offerad by the administrator.

NOTE 13: CONTINGENCIES
The Hospital evaluates contingencies based upon the bast available evidance. The Hospital balieves that

no allowances fur loss contingencies are considerad necessary. 1o the extent that resolotion of contingencies
reaults in amounts, which vary, from the Hospital’s gstimates, luturc earnings will be charged or credited.

The principal coantingencies are described below.

Third Party Coat-Based Charges

The Hospital is ceontingently liable for retroactive adjustments made by the Medicare and Medicaid programs
as a result of Lhelr examinations as well as retroactive changes in interprcetations applying statutes,

vegulations and general instructions of those programs, The amount of such adjustments cannot be determined.
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WASHINGTON PARISH HOSPITAL SERVICE DISTRICT NO, 1
d/b/a RIVERSIDE MEDICAL CENTER
FRANEKLINTON, LOUISIANA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND 2022

NGTE 13: CONTINGENCIES, CONTINUED
Professicnal Liability Risk

The Hospital is contingently liable for losses from professiconal liability not underwritten by the Hoapital’s
insurance carrvier.

Viorkman’ s Compensation Risk

The Hospital participated in the Louisiana fospital Assoclation Self-Insurance Workmen's Compensation I'rust
Fund in 2023 and 2022. Should the fund’s aassets not be adequate to cover claims made againzt it, Lhe Hospital
may be assessed ita pro rata share of the resulting deficit. It is nol pussible to estimate the amount of
additional assessments, if any.

Accordingly, the Hospital is contingently liable for assessments for the Louisiana HosplilLal Assoriation
Trust Fund, The trusk fund presumes to be 4 “Grantor Trust” and, accordingly, income and expenses are prorated
to member hospitals,

Self-Tnsurance for Health Insurance

The Hospiltal has elected to self-insure employees and eligible dependents health elaims. Each policy has
a $50,0300 aggregate deductible that neads to bc met before the dednetible is applied. Bach Individual must
teach $80,000 before reinsurance reimburses.

Laws and Regulations
The healthcare industry is sulyject to numeraus laws and regulakions of federal, state, and lecal govermments.
Compliance with such laws and regulatiaons can be subject to future government review and interpretation,

A7 well as regulatory actions unknown or unasserted at this time. These laws and vegulations include, but
ars not limlted te, acecreditation, licenaure, government healthcare program partigipation requirements,
reimbursement for patiant scervices, and Medicare and Medicaid fraud and abuse. Recently, government activity
nas increased with respect to investigations and allegallions concerning possible violations of fraud and
abuse statutes and regulations by healthcare providers. Violations of these laws and requlations could result
in exclusion £rom government hecalthcare program participation, together with the imposition of significant
fines and penalties, as well as significant repayment for past reimburaement for patient services recelved.
While the Hospital i1s subject to similar regulatory reviews, management helieves the outcome of any such
regulatory review will not have a material adverse effect on the lespital’s [inancial pesition,

NOTE 14: NET POSITION

Net position for the vears ended Decemher 31, are as follows:

2023 2072
lnvested in Capital Assets, nel of related debt & 3,555,129 $ 3,314,737
Bestricted for:
Bond Tndenturae 102, 055 100,649
Unrestricted 13,331,110 11,454, 380
Total Net Pgsition 5 16, 388, 294 g 14,869,766

NOTE 15: GRANT REVENUE

The Hospital enlered into a cooperative endeavor agreement (CEA) with a regional public rural hospital
tGrantor) whereby the Grantor awards as an intergovernmental transfer (IGT) to bs used solely to provide
adequate and eszential medically necessary and aveilable healthrare scrvices to the Hospital's service
population subject to the availability of such grant funds, The aggregate TGT qrant income recoyuized is
55,471,682 and 54,631,374 for the years ended Decembher 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

NOTE 16: RECENTLY ISSUED ACCOUMTING PRONQUNCEMENTS

As of the date of this report, there were no new pronouncements thal affect the Hospital.
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WASHINGTON PARISH HCOSPITAL SERVICE DISTRICT HO. 1
d/b/a RIVERSIDE MEDICAL CENTER
FRANKLINTON, LOUISIANA

NOTES TC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND 2022

NOTE 17: CARES ACT FUNDING

Tn response to the COVID-19 pandemic, Congress passed H.R. 748, the Coreonavirus Ald, Relief, and Economic
Security Act (“CARES Rct”) which was signed into law by the President on March 27, 2020. This Act established
several diftereni tranches of funds m=ant to casure businesses would be able to continue paying their
emplovees and other bills despite the COVID related declines in patient volumes and revenues and increase
in cperating rosts. Riverside Medical Center received funds from three of the different portions of CARES
Act funds: The Small Business aAdminjstration’s Paycheck Pratection Program, the Medicare Accelerated and
Pdvanced Payment Program, and Provider Relief [unds.

Medicare Accelerated and Advanced Program

The Hospital received 2,705,253 in Medicare Accelerated and Advanced Fayments on April 17, 2020. This program
was in existence prior to COYID-1% but was amended and expanded by the Acvk for the purposes of praoviding
a source of wore funding to Medicare Part A providers and Part B suppliers., If these funds are not repaad
within one year from the date they ware received, CMS will racover the funds by way of recoupmant of twenty-five
{25) percent of Medicare paymenls owed to the Hospital [or the first eleven {11} months, then recouped At
fifty (50) percent Lor the next ajx (%) months. The total recoupment will take place over a maximum of
twenty-nine (29) months. After that time, a demand latter will be issued for any remaining balance due suhject
Lo an interest rate of Ffour (4} percent. CMS began recouping funds during the 2021 fiscal year, and fhe
halance was paid in full September 30, 2022.

NOTE 18: SUBSEQUENT RVENTS

Management. has eveluated subsequent avents through the date thal the financial =statements were avarlable
to be iassued, May 23, 2024,
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WASHINGTON PANISH HOSPITAT SERVICE DISTRICT NO, 1

SCHEDULE OF REVENUE

d/b/a RIVERSIDE MEDICAL CENTER
FRANKLTHTOM, LOUISIANA

DECEMBER 31,

Daily Patient Sarvices
Medical and Surgical
Intensive Care

Swing Hed
Total Daily Palkient Saervires

Other Hursing Serviaes
Emergency Services

Cperating and kecovery Rooma
Total Other Mursing Services

other Profassional Services
Anesthecsiology
Cardiac Rehab
Cardiopulmenaxy
Cardiolegist Clinle
CT Scan
Cath Lab
Dialysis
hietary
Echo and Dopplar
Electrocardlology/Elcciroencephalography
Family Care Climc
Hospice
Hospilalist
Infusion Therapy
Internal Medicine
Laboratory
Mammography
MRT
Huclear Medicine
Padiatvinc Imternal Medicine Clinic
Phatmacy
Radiclogy
Sperch/Occupatisnal/Physical Thorapy
Thomas Clinjc
Aiverside Medical Center Surgery Jnnler
Ultrasound

Wound Care
Totul Other Profausional Services

GrotLs Patient Service Revenue

Less: Contractual Rdjustments

2023 2022

INPATIENT OUTPATIENRT TOTAL TOTAL
] 227,680 & 560, 645 3 784, 365 5 B71, 061
29,543 1,807 21, 350 23,239
403, 877 - 403, 877 246, ORB
661,100 562,402 1,223, 597 1,140,445
43,344 8,456, 511 8, 499, 981 8,206,213
404, 980 3,021,174 4,432,154 4,330,872
448,324 11,483,811 11,932,135 12,537,085
77, 244 @80, 720 757,974 475,673
- 214, 760 214,760 166,196
527,548 R4k, 764 1,370,370 1,604,274
- 550,514 589,514 135, 445
143, azd 4,133,372 9,443,296 9,108, 756
11,331 2,262,773 2,274,104 3,099,374
- - - 17,000
1,927 2,936 4,861 6,258
55,523 1,544, 056 1,599,979 1,248,317
14,424 785, 600 800, 224 549, 338
- 1,446, 864 1,446,894 1,821,574
7,293 - 7,293 3,366
134,127 198, 605 132,932 519,711
13, 652 1,202,214 1,220,377 1,002,474
- 1,792, 598 1,292,538 1,747,122
532,234 21,585,228 22,117, 463 21,404,594
- 224, 431 474,431 775,458
1,504 121, 564 726, 068 107, 616
19,606 1,137,959 1,157,565 1,757,949
- 1,687,084 1,867,094 1,764, 804
1,445, 750 5,153, 164 6,651,954 6,979, 764
30,241 2,047,420 2,071, 681 2,187, 54§
372, 130 3, 005, 525 3,377,855 3,011,149
- 1,254,801 1,254,801 1,183,803
- nY, E37 67,637 79,519
19, 561 1,214,934 1,234,394 1,225,492
- 485, 468 446,466 565,019
3,471,648 59,747,422 63,250,070 63,072,314
§ 1,581,072 $ 71,833,725 76,414, 797 77,549,841

Nebt Patient Service Revenua before Provision for Doubtful Accounts

(48,371,924

(49,548,111

5

28,042,801

S

28,001,743




WASHINGTON PARISH HOSPITAL SERVICE DISTRICT WO. 1

—EEHEDULE OF QTHER REVENUE

d/b/a RIVERSIDE MEDICAIL CENTER
FRANKLINTON, LOUISIANA

DECEMBER 31,

QOther Operating Revenue
Cafateria
Vending

OlLhex

Total Other Gperating Revenue

22

2023 2022
71,824 $ 62,003
15,882 15,611

1,917,714 704,160

2,008,421 % 7RG, 774




SCHEDULE OF EXPENSES

FRAMKLINTOR, LOUTSIANA

WASHIWNGTON PARTISH HOSPITAL SERVICE DISTRICT NO.
d/b/a RIVERSIDE MEDICAL, CENTER

1

DECEMBER 31,

Salaries
Administrative
Anesthesiclogy
Cardiac kehab
Cardropulmonary

Cath Lab

Central Services and Supply

CT Scan

Dietary

Lche and Doppler
Electrocardioloygy
Emergency Sarvices
Franklinton Clinic
Heospitalist
Housekeeplng
Infusinon Tharapy
Intensive Care
Labhoratory

Mammography

Medical and Surgical

Nuclear Medicine

Nursing Administration
Operating and Recovery Rooms

Pedialric Internal Medicine= Clinic

Fhysician Office
Plant Operations
Radiology

Sccial Services

Spesch/Qcoupational /Physical Therapy

Surgery Center
Thomas Clindic
Ultrasound

Total Salaries

2023 2022
5 1,827,217 % 1,995,897
185, 673 407,186
71,146 45,543
717,166 643,970
182,804 223,198
100, 323 103,131
76,794 65,304
196,527 167,615
8,310 73, 274
45,570 47,310
1,569,733 1,516,258
725,838 739,747
- 492,461
223,332 244,555
167,929 141,432
61,556 44,251
1,019,431 984,705
62,734 60, 744
1,134,712 1,026,517
74.815 72,780
955,152 831, 334
222,57/ 194,909
732,614 562,762
424,944 474,140
249,060 233,365
497, 686 128,490
138,72 139, /15
861,123 804,726
471,290 817,914
762,314 708, 762
147,215 153,420
$ 14,294,500 g 14,162,562




WASHINGTON PARISH HCSPITAL SERVICE DISTRICT NO. 1
d/b/a RIVERSIDE MEDICAL CEMTER
FRANKLINTON, LOUISIANA
SCHEDULE, OF EXPENSES DECEMBER 31,
2023 2022
Outside Services and Professional Fees

Adminigstrative 1,533, 448 1,690,318
Cardiclogy 959,733 1,021,771
Cath T.ab L, 796 20,174
CT Scan 1,614 RGO
Dielysls - 11,700
Dietary 46,553 4n, 272
Eloctrocarndiclogy/Blectroancephalography 21,417 19,695
Echo and Doppler 239 207
Emergency Services 1,371,608 1,388,428
Franklinten Clinic 28,48 3,787
Hospltalist 544,076 22,917
Housekeepinu T4,B840 72,962
Information Techrnology 440, 142 439,736
Laboratory 376,442 173, 393
Mammagraphy 6,600 1,900
HMed/Surge 1,008 15,234
MRI 222,714 212,600
Nuclear Madicine 9,171 12,518
Fediatric Internal Medicine clinic 416,618 5,354
Pharmacy 568, 315 148,317
Phygician Office 2,670 1,844
Plant Gperations £1,232 44,157
radielagy 10, 634 10,201
Sonial Services 5,065 4,860
Specch/Ocoupational /Physical Therapy 12,727 12,637
Surgery Center 1,154 1,175
Swingbhed 4,878 11,746
Thomas Clinic 29,718 33,003
HWound Care 124,410 148, 9n0
Total Outside Services and Professional Fees 5 6,520,398 6,141,866




WASHINGTON PARISH HOSPITAL SERVICE DISTRICT MO. 1
d/b/a RIVERSIDE MEDICAL CENTER
FRANKLINTON, LOUTSIANA

SCHEDULE OF EXPENSES DECEMBER 31,

2023 2022

Supplies and Other Expensos

Administrative $ 1,414,558 ] 1,736,583
Anesthesiology 14,843 23,423
Cardiac Rehab 4,434 1,381
Cardiopulmonary 116,138 121,809
Cath Lab 290,230 348,633
Central Services and Zupply 14,814 14,659
CT Scan 125,610 123,00
Dietary 154, 986 157,244
rcho and Doppler 23,590 22,355
Eleclrocardioalogy/Elerticencephalography 17,381 4,757
Fmergency Services 182,933 187,652
franklinfon Clinic 106,017 117,439
Housekeeping 72,944 68,490
Hospitalist - (28}
information Technology 3,779 15,101
Infusion Thevapy 43,945 45,0561
Intensive Care 3,667 11,745
Lahorataory 1,294,057 1,409,314
Mamnography 52,168 (11,784}
Medical and Surgacal a4, 433 74,7122
ME1 24,9058 26,299
Wuclear Medicine 54,262 82,815
Hursing Administration 12,130 16,387
Operating and Recovery Rooms 183,582 252,634
Fediatric Internal Medicine Clinic 136,147 154,809
Pharmacy 1,321,966 1,108,392
Physician Office 111,€83 1h7,429
Planl Operations 761,068 753,59
Radinlaogy 146,636 154,323
Social Zervices 14,450 15,101
Speech/Uccupational /Physical Therapy 36,454 36,460
Surgery Center 7,812 11, 09)
Swing Bed 624 2,082
Thomas Clinico 45,399 74,063
ltrasound 9,855 16,688
Wound Care 3,939 5,108
Total Supplics and Gther Expenscs 5 7,035,893 5 7,418,484
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WASHINGTON PARISH HOSPITAIL SERVICE DISTRICT NO. 1

d/b/a RIVERSIDE MEDICAL CENTER
FRANKLINTON, LOUISIANA

SCHEDULE OF GOVERNING BOARD EXPENSES

DECEMBER 31,

Jerry Thomas 1
Grayson Ball
Donna ateele
Robin Fahre

JT homas

Pam Breland
Malcolm Wascom
Leri Schilling
Richard Warts
Tammy Magrudar
Cynthia August
Randy Magee

William Ferrante

Total Gaverning Board Expenses

2023 2022
EE] $ o0
825
- 375
375 -
500 150
3040 caao
425 900
§25 828
- 00
825 900
150 750
750 450
- o0
5 6,730 S 7,650




WASHINGTON PARISH HOSPITAL SERVICE DISTRICT NO. 1

d/b/a RIVERSIDE MEDICAIL CENTER
FRANKLINTON, LOUISIANA

SCHEDULE OF COMPENSATION, BEWEFITS AND OTHER PAYMENTS TO CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

DECEMBER 31,

Peter Sullivan
Salary

Beneflits- Insurance

Sean Johnson
Salary

BeneLits—- [nsurance

Darell Lavendexr
Salary
Reimbursement. /Moving Expenses

2023

2022

28,014
203

256, 264
3,244

28,217

5 259,508

100, 917
125

Ris)

101,042

29,615
f,516a

38,131
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INDEPERDENT AUDITOR’S REPQRT ON INTERNAL CONTRCL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON

CCMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFOEMED IN

ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Board of Commissioners
Washington Parish Hospital Service Disfrict Mo, 1
d/b/a Riverside Medical Center

franklintan, Louisiana

We have audited, in accordance with generally accepted auditing sfandards

of the United

States and rhe standards applicable to financial auditz contained In Government Auditing
Standards, Llssucd by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial staloements
of Washington Parish Hospital Service District No. 1, d/h/a Riverside Medical Center ({the
Hospitall, a component unit ol the Washingten parish Council, State of Louisiana, as of and

for the vears ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, and the related nates

to the financial

statements, which collectively comprise the hospital’s basic financial ztatements as listed

in the takle of contents, and have issued our report therecn dated May 23, 2024.

INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REFPORTING

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we

considered the

Hespital's dinternal conlroel over financial reporting (internal control) to detevmine the
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our
opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpcse of aexpressing an opinien on the
effectivensss of Lhe Hospital's intecnal control. Acrcordingly, we do not express an opinion

on the effectivencss of the Hespital’s internal control.

Qur coeasideration of interunal control was for the limited purpose described in the preceding

paragraph and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal contrel that might be
material weaknesses or slgnificant deficiencies and Lherefore, material wesknesses or
siynificant deficiencies may exist that have not been identified. Heowever, as described in
the accempanying “Schedule of Findings and Questicned Costs and Management’s Corrective
Action Plan”, we did ldentify certain deficiencies in internal control that we consider Lo be
material weaknesses.

A deficiency in interpal control exists when the design or operation of a contrel does nol
allow management or employees, in the nermal course of performing their assigned funclaons,
Lo prevent, or detect and correct misstatements on a timely bhasis. 2 meaterial weakness is a
deficiency, or combination of deficicncies, in dinternal control, suci that therve is a
reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the cntity’s financial statements will
not be prevented or detected and corrected on a timely bhasis. We consider the deficiencies
descriked in the acocompanying “Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs and Managemenl's
Correclive Acltion Plan” as items= 2023-1 and 2023-2 to be material weaknesses.
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A significant deficiency 1is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control that 1s less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to marit attention
by those charged wilth governance,

COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS

As part of obtaining reascnable assurance aboub whether the Hospital's financial statements
are free of material misstatement, we performed tasta of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, reqgulations, countracts and grants agreements, noncompliance with which
could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts.
However, providing an cpinion on compliance with those preovisions was not an objective of our
audit and, accordingly, we de nob express sueh an epinicn. The results of ocur tests did not
identify findings of noncumpliance,

THE HOSPITAL'S RESPONSE TC FINDINGS

The Hospital's responuse to the findings ldentified in cur audit is described in the
accompanying “Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs and Managemanl’s Corrective Action
Flan¥. The Hospital’s respengse was not subjected to the auwditing procedures applicd in the
audit of the financial statements and, «ccordingly, we express no cpinion on it.

PURPOSE OF THIS REPORT

The purpose ol this report is solely to deacribe Lhe scope of our testing of internal control
and compliance and the results of that tesling, and nct te provide an opinion on the
effacliveness of the entity’s internal control or on compliance, This repurt is an integral
part of an audit performed in accordance with Govermment Anditing Standards in consldering
the entity’s internal contrul and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not svitable
fnr any other purpose.

This report is intended Ffor Lhe infermation and usc of the Board of Commissioners and
management of the Hospital, others within the organization, federal awarding agencies, and
Lho Legislative Auditor of the State of Louisiana and is not intended to be and should not be
used hy anyone othecr than these specified parties.

Sincerely,

r}f’a%ﬂhm Brgunrnd Ve/fﬁm@!g

LANGLINRIS BROUSSARD & KOHLEMNBLWG

(A Corporation of Certified Fublic Accountants)
Abbeville, LA

M3y 23, 2024
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WASHINGTON PARISH HOSPITAL SERVICE DISTRICT RO. 1
d/bfa RIVERSIDE MEDICAL CENTER
FRANKLINTON, LOUISIANA

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS AND MANAGEMENT'S CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND 2022

We have audited the financial statements of Washington Parish Heapilal Jervice
District Wo. 1, d/b/a Riverside Medical Center {the Hospital), a compenent unit of the
Washington Parish Council, State of Lounisiana, as of and for the years =nded

December 31, 2023 and 2022 and have iszued our report thereon dated May 23, 2024.

We conducted our audift in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards of the
United States and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller Gencral of the United States, and the
provisions of OMB Circular A-133. Qur audit ol the financial statements as of

December 31, 2023 and 2022 resulled In unmodified opinions.

Section I: Summary of Auditor’s Reportis

Report on Internal Control and Compliance Material to the Financial Statements:
Comgpliance:
Compliance Materizl to Financial Stalcmentsa No

Internal Contrecl:

Material Weaknesses: TER
Significant Deficlencies: No
Section II: Financial Statement Findings

Matarial Weaknesses

Finding 2023-1 Proposed Audiit Adjunstments

Criteria: The proposcd audit adjustments had a material effect on the financial
statements,

Condition and Cause: The proposed audit adjustments primarily included adjustments Lo
cost report seftlements.

Bffect: HKoapital managemsnt has reviewed and approved theass propased sudit
adjustments.

Recommendation: Hespital management zhould continue to monilor interim financial
statements in order to identify adjustments thal need to be booked.

Management Response: Managemenl agrees with the findings and will monitor the intevim
financial statements in order to jdentify any corrections that need to be rccorded.
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WASHINGTON PARISH HOSPITAL SERVICE DISTRICT NO., 1
d/b/a RIVERSIDE MEDICAL CENTER
FRANKLINTON, LOUISIANA

Finding 2023-2Z Preparation of Full Disclosure Financial Statements

Critaria; Management is responsible for the preparation and presentation of financial
statements according to Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GABAP]. These
principles include disclasure requirements.

Condition and Cause: The Hospital dces not prepare full-disclosure GAAP? Financial
Statements.

Effect: The Hospital relied on its outaide auvditors to assist in the preparation of
external financial statements and related disclosures.

Recommendation: Hospital’s mapagemsnt and accountling personnel should review the
draft financial statements and note discleosures prior Lo approving them and accepting

responsipility fox their contents and presentation.

Management Response: Management has reviewed the draft tinancial statements and agrees
with the findings.

Section rXII: Management Letter Items

There ware 1o management letter iteims for the fiscal years ended Decenber 31, 2023 and
2022,
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WASHINGTON PARISH HOSPITAL SERVICE DISTRICT NO. 1
d/b/a RIVERSIDE MEDICAL CENTER
FRANKLINTON, LOUISIANA

SCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2022

Finding 2022-1 Proposed Audit Adjustments

The praposed audit adjustments had @ material erffect on the financial statements.

Status: Unresolvad; See Finding 2023-1

Finding 2022-2 Preparation of Full Disclosure Financial Statements

Managemsnt is rasponsible for the preparation and presentation of financial statemonts
accorading to Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP). These principles
include disclogure requirements,

Status: Unresolved; See Finding 2023-2
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INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANT'S REPORT
ONAPPLYING AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES

Board of Commissioners

Washington Parish Hospital Scrvice District No. |
d/bfa Riverside Medical Center

Franklinton, Louisiana

We have performed the procedures described in Schedule A - Procedurcs and Results, which were agreed
to by Washington Parish Hospital Service District No. |, d/b/a Riverside Medical Center (Hospital), a
component unit of Washington Parish Council, State of Louisiana, and on the control and compliance (C/C)
areas identified in the Louisiana Legislative Auditor’s (LLA’s) Statewide Agreed-Upon Procedures
(SAUPs) for the fiscal period January 1, 2023 through December 31, 2023. The Hospital’s management is
responsible for those C/C areas identified in the SAUPs.

The Hospital has agreed to and acknowledged that the procedures performed are appropriate to meet the
intended purpose of the engagement, which is to perform specified procedures on the C/C areas identified
in LLA's SAUPs tor the fiscal period January 1, 2023 (hrough December 31, 2023, Additionally, LLA has
agreed to and acknowledged that the procedures performed are appropriate for its purposes. This report
may not be suitable for any other purpose. The procedures performed may not address all the items of
inferest to a user of this report and may not meet the needs of all users of this report and, as such, users arc
responsible for determining whether the procedures performed are appropriate for their purpuses.

The procedures and associated findings are described in Schedule A - Procedures and Results.

We were engaged by the Hospital to perform this agreed-upon procedures engapement and conducted our
cngapgement in accordance with attestation standards established by the American Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and applicable standards of Government Auditing Standards. We were not engaged to
and did not conduct an examination or review engagement, the ohjective of which would be the expression
of an opinion or conclusion, respectively, on those C/C arcas identified in the SAUPs. Accordingly, we do
not express such an opinion or conclusion. Had we performed additional procedures, other inatters might
have come to our attention that would have been reported to you.

We are required to be independent of the Hospital and to meet our other ethical respensibilities, in accordance
with the relevant ethical requirements related to our agreed-upon procedures engagement.

2419 Veterans Memorlat Drive « PO Box 1123 + Abbeville, LA 70511-1123 « Office (337) B93-6232 » Fax (337} 893-6249 - www.LBKcpa.net



This report is intended solely to describe the scope of testing performed an thase C/C areas identified in the
SAUPs, and the result of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on control or compliance, Accordingly,
this report is not suitable for any other purpose. Under Louisiana Revised Statute 24:513, this report is

distributed by (he LLA as a public document.

f}(‘él.fﬁéf'if&b Bigumnd 4 %}Mmffxfj

LANGLINAIS BROUSSARD & KOHLENBERG
(A Corporation of Certified Public Accountants)
Abbeville, Louisiana

May 23, 2024



L Written Policies and Procediires

A.

i

v,

vi,

Vvii.

Vil

Obtain and inspect the entity’s written policies and procedures and observe whether they address
each of the fullowing categories and subcategories if applicable to public funds and the enlity’s
operations:
i.

Budgeting, including preparing, adopting, monitoring, and amending the budget
Result: Policy provided included all of the above functions.

Purchasing, including (1) how purchases are initiated, (2) how vendors are added to the
vendor list, (3) the preparation and approval process of purchase requisitions and purchase
orders, (4} contrals to ensure compliance witli the Public Bid Law, and (5) documentation
required to be maintained for all bids and price quotes.

Result: Policy provided included all of the above [unctions.

Disbursements, including processing, reviewing, and approving,.
Resull: Policy provided included all of the above funclions.

Receipts/Collections, including receiving, recording, and preparing depoesits.  Also,
policies and procedures should include munagement’s actions to determine the
completeness of all collections for cach type of revenue or agency [und additions (e.g.,
periodic confinmation with outside parties, reconciliation to utility billing after cutofl
procedures, reconciliation of traffic ticket number sequences, agency fund forfeiture
monies confirmation),

Result: Iolicy provided included all of the above functions.

Payroli/Personnel, including (1) payroll processing, (2) reviewing and approving time and
aftendance records, including leave and overtime worked, and (3) approval process for
empluyce rates of pay or approval and maintenance of pay rate schedules.

Resuit: Policy provided included all of the above functions, with the exception of approval
process for ciiployee rates of pay or approval and maintenance of pay rate schedules.

Contracting, including (1} lypes of services requiring written coniracts, (2) standard terms
and conditions, (3) legal review, {4) approval process, and (5) monitoring process.
Result: Poliey provided included all of the abuve functions.

Travef and Expense Reimbursement, including (1) allowable expenses, (2) dollar
fhresholds by category of expense, (3) documentation requirements, and (4) required
approvers.

Result: Policy provided included all of the above lunctions.

Credit Cards (and debit cards, fuel cards, purchase cards, if applicable), imncluding (1)
how cards are to he controlled, (2) allowable business uses, (3) documentation
requirements, (4) required approvers of statements, and (5) moniloring card usage (e.g.,
determining the reasonableness of fuel card purchases).

Result: Policy provided included all of the above functions.

Ethices, including (1) the prohibitions as defined in Louisiana Revised Statuie (R.S))
A2:1111-1121, (2} actions (o be taken if an ethics violation lakes place, (3) system to
monitor possible ethics vielations, and (4) a requirement that documentation is maintained



x1,

Xil.

2} Board or Finagnce Comumnittee

to demonstrate that all employees and officials were notified of any changes to the entity’s
ethics policy.
Result: Policy provided included all of the above functions.

Debt Service, including (1} debt issuance approval, (2} continuing disclosure/EMMA
reporting requirements, (3) debt reserve requirements, and (4) dcbt service requirements.
Result: Pelicy provided included all of the above [unctions.

Information  Technolopy Disaster Recovery/Business Continuity, including (1)
identification of critical data and frequency of data baclkups, (2) storage of backups in a
separate physical location isolated from the network, (3) periodic lesting/verification that
backups can be restored, (4) usc of antivirus software on all systems, (5) timely application
of all available system and software patches/updates, and (6) identification of personnel,
processes, and tools needed to recover aperations after a critical event.

Result: Policy provided included all of the above functions.

Prevention of Sexual Harassment, including R.S. 42:342-344 requirements for (1) agency

responsibilities and prohibilions, (2) annual employee training, and (3) annual reporting.
Result: Policy provided included all of the ubove fitnctions.

A,

i

i1,

il

iv,

Obtain and inspect the board/finance committee minutes for the fiscal period, as well as the board’s
enabling lcgislation, charter, bylaws, or cquivalent document in eflect during the fiscal period, and

Observe that the board/finance committee met with a quorum at least monthly, or on a
frequency in accordance with the board’s enabling legislation, charler, bylaws, or other
equivalent document.

Result: Procedure performed; no exceptions noted.

For those entities reporting on the governmental accounting, model, observe whether the
minutes referenced or included monthly budget-lo-actual comparisons on the general fund,
quarterly budget-to-actual comparisons, at a minimum, on all proprietary funds, and semni-
annual budget-to-actual comparisons, at a minimum, on all special revenue funds.
Afternativedy, for those enfities reporting on the nofl-for-profic accounting model, obseive
that the minutes referenced or inchwded financial acrivity relating to public funds if those
public funds comprised more than 10% of the entity’s collections during the fiscal period.
Result: Procedure performed; no exceptions noted.

For governimental entities, obtain the prior year audit report and ohserve the unassigned
fund balance in the general fund. [f the general fund had a negative ending unassigned
fund balance in the prior year audit report, observe that the minules for at least one meeting
during the fiscal period referenced or included a formal plan to eliminate the negative
unassigned fund balance in the general fund.

Result: Procedure N/A; no negative unassigned fund balance in the prior year audil.

Observe whether the board/finance comumittee received wrillen updates of the progress of
resolving audit finding(s), according to manageinent’s corrective action plan at each
meeting until the findings are considered fully resolved.

Result: Procedure perfonmed; no cxceptions noted,



3) Bank Reconciliations

A

4} Collections (excluding electronic funds transfers)

i,

tii.

Obrtain a listing of entity banl accounts for the fiscal period from management and managemenl’s
representation that the listing is complete. Ask management to identify the entity’s main operating
accounl. Select the entity’s main operating account and randomly select 4 additional accounts (or
all uccounts it'less than 5). Randomly select one month from the fiscal period, obtain and inspect
the corresponding bank stalement and reconciliation for each selected account, and observe that:
Bank reconciliations include evidence (hat they were prepared within 2 months of the
rclated statement closing date (e.g., initialed and dated or electronically logged);
Result: Procedure performed; no exceptions noted,

Bank reconciliations include written cvidence that a member of management or a board
member who does not handle cash, post ledgers, or issuc checks has reviewed each hank
reconciliation within 1 month of the date the rcconeiliation was prepared (e.g., initialed
and dated or electronically logged); and

Management has documentation reflecting it has researched reconciling items that have
been outstanding for more than 12 months from the stalement closing date, if applicable.
Resull: Procedure performed; no exceptions noted.

A.

i,

Obtain a listing of depasit sites [or the fiscal period where deposits [or cash/checks/money orders
(cash} are prepared and management’s representation that the listing is complete. Randomly sclcet
5 deposit sites (or all deposit sites if less than 5).

Regult: Document provided; no exceptions noted.

For each deposit site selected, obtain a listing of collection locations and manapement’s
representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select one colleclion location for each deposit
site (e.g., 5 collection locations tor 5 deposit sites), obtain and inspect written policies and
procedures relating to cinployee job duties (if there arc no written policies or procedures, then
inguire of employees about their job dutics) at each collection location, and observe that job duties
arc properly segregated al each collection location such that

Employees responsible for cash collections do not share cash drawersfregisiers;

Result: Procedure performed; no cxceptions noted.

Each employee responsible for collecting cash is not also responsible for preparing/making
bank deposits, unless another employee/otficial is responsible for reconeiling collection
documentation (c.g., pre-numbered receipls) (v the deposit;

Result: Procedure performed; no exceptions noted.

Each employee responsible for collecting cash is not also responsible for posting collection
entries to the general ledger or subsidiary ledgers, unless another employee/official is
responsible for reconciling ledger postings to each other and to the deposit; and

Result: Procedure performed; no exceptions nated.



iv,

iii.

v,

The employee(s) responsible for reconciling cash collections to the general ledger and/or
subsidiary ledgers, by revenue source and/or custodial fund additions, is (are)} not also
responsible for collecting cash, unless anothicr employee/official verifies the reconciliation.
Result: Procedure performed; no exceptions noted.

Obtain from management a copy of the bond or insurance policy for theft covering all employees
who have access to cash. Obgerve thal the bond or insurance policy fur theft was in force during
the fiscal period.

Result: Procedure performed; no exceptions noted,

Randomly select two deposit dates for each of the 5 bank accounts selecled for Bank
Reconciliations procedure #3A (select the next deposit date chronologically if no deposits were
made on the dates randomly selected and randomly select a deposil if multiple deposits are made
on the same day). Alternatively, the practitioner may use a source document other than hank
statements when selecting the deposit dates for testing, such as a cash collection log, daily revenue
report, receipt hook, ete. Obtain supporting documentation for each of the 10 deposits and

Observe that receipls are sequentially pre-numbered.

Kesult: Procedure performed: no exceptions noted.

Trace sequentially pre-mumbered receipts, syslem reperts, and other related collection
documentation to the deposit slip.
Result: Procedure performed; no exceptions noted.

Trace the deposit slip total to the aclual deposit per the bank stateinent.
Result: Procedure performed; no cxceptions noted.

Observe that the deposit was muade within one husiness day of reccipt at the collection
location (within one week if the depository is more than 10 miles from the collection
lacation or the deposit is less than $100 and the cash is stored securely in a locked safe or
drawer).

Result: Procedure performed; no exceptions noted.

Trace the actual depasit per the banlk statement to the geaeral ledger.
Result: Procedure performed; no exceptions noted.

5) Non-Payroll Disbursements (excluding cord purchases, travel reimbursements, and petty casf

~ purchases)

A,

1.

Obtain a listing of Jocations that process payments for the fiscal period and management’s
represcufation that the listing is complete. Randomly select 5 locations (or all lecations if less than
5).

Result: Document provided; no exceptions noted.

For each location sclected under procedure #5A above, obtain a listing of those employees involved

willl non-payroll purchasing and payment fimctions. Obtain written policies and procedures

relating to employee job duties (if the agency has no written policies and procedures, then inquire

of employecs about their job duties), and ohserve that job duties are properly segregated such that
At least two employees are invalved in initialing a purchase request, approving a purchase,
and placing an order or making the purchase;



D.

A

ijl.

iv,

Result: Procedure performed; no exceptions noted.

At least two employees are involved in processing and approving payments to vendors;
Result: Procedure performed; no exceptions noted.

‘The employee responsible for processing payments is prehibited from adding/modifying
vendor files, unless another employee is responsible for periodically reviewing changes to
vendar tiles;

Result: Procedure perfomnned; no exceptions noted.

Tither the employee/official responsible for signing checks mails the payment or gives the
signed checks to an employee to mmail who is not responsible for processing payments; and
Result: Procedure performed; no exceptions noted.

Only employees/officials authorized to sign checks approve the electronic disbursement
(release) of funds, whether through autemated clearinghouse (ACLI). electronic funds
transfer (LFT). wire transfer, or some other cleetronic means.

Result: Procedure performed; no exceptions noted.

For each location selected under procedure #5A above, obtain the entity’s non-payroll disbursement
transaction population (excluding cards and travel reimbursements) and obtain management’s
representation that the population is complete. Randomly select 5 disbursements for each location,

abtain supporting documentation for each transaction, and

1.

Observe whether the dishursement, whether by paper or electronic means, matched the
relaled original iteynized invoice and supporling documentation indicates that deliverables
included on the invoice were rcecived by the entity, and

Result: Procedure performed; no exceptions noted.

Observe whether the disbursement documentation included evidence (c.g., initial/date,
electronic logging) of segregation of duties tested under procedure #5B above, as
applicable.

Result: Procedure performed; no exceptions noted.

Using the entity’s main operating account and the month selected in Bank Reconcilialions
procedure #3A, randomly select 5 non-payroll-related electronic disbursements (or all clectronic
disbursements if less than 5) and observe that each electronic disbursement was (a) approved by
only those persons authorized to disburse funds (e.g., sign checks) per the entity’s policy, and (b)
approved by the required number ol authorized signers per the entity’s policy, Nute: If no electronic
payments were made from the main operating account during the mounth selected the practitioner
should select an alternative wmonth and/or account for testing that does inchide electronic
disbursements.

Result; Procedure performed; no exceptions noted.

Obtain from managemeni a listing of all active credit cards, bank debit cards, fuel cards, and
purchase cards (cards) for the fiscal period, including the card nembers and the names of the
persons who maintained possession of the cards. Obtain management’s represcafation that the
listing is complete.



il

Result: Document provided; no exceptions noted.

Using the listing prepared by imanagement, randomly select 5 cards (or all cards if less than 5) thai
were used during the fiscal period. Randomly select one monthly statement or combined staternent
for cach card (for a debit card, randamly select one monthly bank statement). Obtain supporting
documentation, and
Observe whether there is evidence that the monthly statement or combined stateimernt and
supperting documentation {e.g., original reccipts for credit/dchit card purchases, exception
reports for excessive fuel card usage) were reviewed and approved, in writing (or
clectronically approved) by someone other than the authorized card holder (those instances
requiring such approval that may constram the legal authority of certam public officials,
such as the mayor of a Lawrason Act municipality, should not be reported); and
Result: Procedure performed; no exceptions noted.

Observe that finance charges and late fees were nol assessed on the sefected statements.
Result: Procedure performed,; no exceptions noted.

Using the monthly statements or combined statements sclected under procedure #7B above,
excluding fuel cards, randomly select 10 transactions (or all transactions if less than 10) from each
statement, and obtain supporting documentation for the transactions (e.g., each card should have
10 transactions subject to inspection). For cach transaction, observe that it is supported by (1) an
original itemized receipt that identifies precisely what was purchased, (2) written documentation
of the business/public purpose, and (3) documentation of the individuals parlicipating in meals (for
meal charges only). For missing receipts, the practitioner should describe the nature of the
transaction and observe whether management had a compensaling control to address missing
receipts, such as a “missing receipt statement” that is subject Lo increased serutiny.

Result: Procedure performed; no exceptions noted.

) Travel and Travel-Related Expense Reimmbursements (excluding card lransaclions)

A

i1

Obtain {rom management a listing of ull travel and travel-related expense reimburscinents during
the fiscal period and management’s representation that the listing or general ledger is complete.
Randomly select 5 reimbursements and obluin the related expense reimbursement forms/prepaid
expense documentation of each selected reimbursement, as well as the supporting documentation.
For each of the 5 reimbursements sclected

If reimbursed using a per diem, observe that the approved reimbursement rate is no more
than those rates established either by the State of Louisiana or the U.S. General Services
Administration (www.gsa.gov);

Result: Procedure performed; no exceptions noted.

Il reimbursed using actual costs, observe that the reimbursement is supported by an original
itemized receipt that identifies precisely what was purchased;
Result: Procedure performed; no exceptions noted,

Observe that each reimbursement is supported by documentation ot the business/public
purpose (for meal charges, observe that the documentation includes (he names of those
individuals participating) and other documentation required by Written Policies and
Procedures procedure #1A(vil); and



8} Contracts

Result: Procedure performed; no exceptions noted.

Ohserve that each reimbursement was reviewed and approved, in writing, by soiueone other
than the person receiving reimbursement.
Resull: Procedure performed; no exceptions noted.

Al

Al

ii.

iit.

9) Payroll and Personnel

Obtain from management a listing of all agreements/contracts for professional services, materials
and supplies, leases, and construction activities that were initiated or renewed during the [iscal
period. Alternatively, the practitioner wmay use an equivalent selection source, such as an uctive
vendor lisf. Obtain managcinent’s represcentation that the listing is complete. Randomly select 5
contracts (or all contracts if less than 5) from the listing, excluding the practitioner’s contragt, and
Observe whether the contract was bid in accordance with the Louisiana Public Bid Law
(c.g., solicited quotes or bids, advertised), if required by law;
Result: Procedure performed; no exceptions noted.

Ctbserve whether the contract was approved by the governing body/hoard, if required by
policy or law (e.g., Lawrason Act, Home Rule Charter);
Resuft; Pracedure performed; no exceptions noted.

Tf the contract was amended (e.g,, change order), observe that the original contract terims
provided for such an amendment and that amendments were made in compliance with the
contract terms (e.g., if approval is required for any amendment, the documen(ed approval);
and

Resull: Procedure perforned; no exceptions noted.

Randomly selcct one payment from the fiscal period for each of the 5 contracts, obtain the
supporting invoice, agree the invoice to the contract terms, and observe that the invoice
and related payment agreed to the terms and conditions of the contract.

Resuit: Procedure performed; ne exceptions noted.

Obtain a listing of employees and officials employed during the fiscal period and management’s
representation that the listing is complete, Randomly select S employees or officials, obtain related
paid salaries and personnel files, and agree paid salaries to authorized salaries/pay rates in the
personnel files.

Result: Document provided; ne exceptions noted.

Randomly select one pay period during the tiscal period. For the 5 employees or officials selected
under procedure #9A above, obtain attendance records and leave documentation for the pay period,
and

QObserve that all selected employees or officials documented their daily attendance and

leave (e.g., vacation, sick, compensatory);

Result: Procedure performed; no exceptions noted.



i Observe whether supervisors approved the attendance and leave of the selected employces
or officials;
Result: Procedure pertormed; no cxceptions noted.

iii. Observe that any leave accrued or taken during the pay period is reflected in the entity’s
cumulative leave records; and
Result: Procedure performed; no exceptions noted.

v, Observe the rate paid to the employees or oflicials agrees to the authorized salary/pay rate
[ound within the personnel file.
Result: Procedure performed; no exceptions noted.

C. Obtain 4 listing of those emnployees or ofticials that received termination payments during the fiscal
peried and management’s represcentation that the list is complete. Randoinly select two employees
or officials and obtain relaled documeniation of the hours and pay rates used in management’s
termination payment calcufations and the entity’s policy on termination payments. Agree the hours
to the cmployee’s or official’s cumnulative leave records, agree the pay rates to the emplovee’s or
official’s authorized pay rates in the employee’s or official’s personnel (les, and agree the
termination payment {o entity policy.

Result: Procedure performed; no exceptions noted.

D. Obtain management’s representation that employer and employee portions of third-party payroll
related amounts (c.g., payroll taxes, refirement contributions, health insurance premiums,
garnishments, workers’ compensation premiums, etc.) have been paid, and any associated forms
have been filed, by required deadlines.

Result: Procedure performed; no exceptions noted.

10} Ethics - ‘ B B B -
A. Using the 5 randomly selected employces/officials from Payroll and Persvnnel procedure #9A
obtain ethies documentation from management, and
i Observe whether the documentation demonstrates that each employee/official complcted
one hour of ethics training during the calendar year as required by R.S. 42:1170; and
Result: Procedure performed; na exceptions noted.

ii. Observe whether the entity maintains documentation which demonstrates lhat each
employee and ofticial were notified of any changes to the entity’s ethics policy during the
fiscal period, as applicable.

Resull: Procedure performed; no exceptions noted.
B. Inguire and/or observe whether the agency has appointed an ethics designee as required by R.S.
42:1170.

Result: Procedure pertormed; no cxceptions noted.

11) Debt Service _ R — -

A, Obtain a listing of bonds/uotes and other debt instruments issued during the fiscal period and
management’s representation that the listing is complete. Selectall debt instruments on the listing,



12) Fraud Notice

obtain supporting documentation, and observe that State Bond Commission approval was obtained
for each debt instrument issued as required by Article VII, Section 8 of the Louisiana Constitution.

Result: Procedure N/A; no new debf jnstruments issued during fiscal period.

Obtain a listing of bonds/motes outstanding at the end of the fiscal period and management’s
representation that the listing is completc. Randomly select one bond/note, inspect debt covenants,
obtain supperting documentation for the reserve balance and payments, and agree actual reserve
balances and payments to those required by debt covenants (including contingency finds, short-
lived asset tunds, or other funds required by the debt covenants).

Result: Procedure pertormed; no exceptions nofed.

A.

13) Information Technology Disaster Recovery/Business Continuity

Obtain a listing of" misappropriations of public funds and assets during the fiscal period and
management’s representation that the listing is complete.  Select all misappropriations on the
listing, abtain supporting documentation, und observe that the enlity reported the
misappropriation(s) to the legislative auditor and the district attorney of the parish in which the
entity is domictled as required by R.S. 24:523.

Results: Procedure not applicable,

Observe Lhat the entity has posted, on ils premises and website, the notice required by R.S. 24:523. 1
concerning the reporting of misappropriation, fraud, waste, or abuse of public funds.
Resujt: Procedure performed; no exceptions noted.

A.

i

iii.

Perform the following procedures, verbally discuss the results with management, and report

“We performed the procedure and discussed the results with management.”
Obtain and inspect the entity’s most recent documentation that it has backed up its critical
data (it there is no written docutnentation, then inquire of personnet responsible for backing
up critical data) and observe evidence that such backup {a) occurred within the past week,
(b) was not stored on the government’s local server or networlk, und (c) was encrypted.
Result: We performed the procedure and discussed the results with managemenl. No
exceptions noted.

Obiain and inspect the entity’s maost recent documentation that it has tested/verified that its
backups can be restored (if there s no written documentation, then mguire of personnel
vesponsible for testing/verifying backup restoration) and observe evidence that the
test/verification was successfully performed within the past 3 months.

Result: We performed the procedure and discussed the results with management. No
exceptions noted.

Obtain a listing of the entity’s computers currently in use and their related locations, and
management’s representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select 5 computers
and observe while management demonstrates that the selected computers have current and
active antivirus software and that the operading system and accounting system software in
use are currently supported by the vendor.



Result: We performed the procedure and discussed the results with management. No
exceptions noted.

B. Randomly select 5 terminated employees (or all terminated employees if Jess than 5) using the list
of terminated employees obtained in Payroll and Persormel procedure #9C. Observe evidence that
the selecled terminated employees have been removed or disabled from the network.

Result: Procedure performed; no exceptions noted.

C. Using the § randomty selected employces/officials fom Payroll and Personnel procedure #94,
obtain cybersecurity training documentation from management, and abserve that the
documentation demonstrates that the following employees/officials with access to the agency’s
information technology assets have completed eybersecurity training as required by R.S. 42:1267.
The requirements are as follows:

e  Hired before June 9, 2020 - compleled the training; and
« Hired on or aficr June 9, 2020 - completed the training within 30 days of

initial service or employment.

Result: Procedure performed; no cxceptions noted.

14) Prevention of Sexuaf Harassment

A Using the 5 randomly selected employees/officizls from Payroll and Persoumel procedure #9A,
obtain sexual harassment training documentation [rom management, and observe that the
documentation demonstrates each employee/official completed at least one hour of sexual
harassment fraining during the calendar year as required by R.S. 42:343.

Result: Procedure performed; no exceptions noted.

B. Observe that the entity has posted its sexual harassment policy and complaint procedure on its
website (or in a conspicuous location on the entity’s premises if the entily does not have a website).
Result: 'rocedure performed; no exceptions noted,

C. Obtain the entity’s aunual sexual harassment report for the current fiscal period, observe that the
report was dated on or before February 1, and observe that the report includes the applicable
requiremnents of R.S. 42:344.

i. Number and pereentage of public servants in the agency who have campleted the training
requirements;
Result: Procedure performed, Y8% of employees have completed the training requirements.

il Number of sexval harassment camplaints received by the agency;
Result: Procedure performed; 0 complaints received.

i1, Number of complaints which resulted in a finding that sexual harassiment occurred;
Result: Procedure performed; 0 complaints received.

iv. Number of complaints in which the finding of sexual harassment resulted in discipline or
corrective action; and
Result: Procedure perforimed; 0 complaints received.



V. Amount of time it took to resolve each complaint.
Result: Procedure performed; 0 complaints received.

Mauagement Response: We are aware of the findings and are working on a plan/process to correct
the findings.
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